
HAVERSTRAW TOWN BOARD 
DECEMBER 12, 2023 
 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
2. ROLL CALL – COUNCILMAN CANCEL, COUNCILMAN GAMBOLI, 

COUNCILMAN GOULD, COUNCILMAN ORTIZ AND SUPERVISOR 
PHILLIPS 

 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
DOES HEREBY APPROVE THE ADOPTION OF MINUTES FOR TOWN BOARD 
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 28, 2023. 

 
4. PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 

RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
DOES HEREBY APPROVE THE PAYMENT OF BILLS AUDITED AT THIS 
MEETING. 

 
5. ACCEPTANCE OF REPORTS 
 

RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
DOES HEREBY ACCEPT THE POLICE DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT FOR 
THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2023. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - TO CONSIDER ADOPTING LOCAL LAW NO. 13 – 2023 

CANNABIS LAW 
 

PURPOSE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 THIS PUBLIC HEARING IS BEING HELD TO CONSIDER ADOPTING LOCAL 
LAW NO. 11 – 2023 TO AMEND CHAPTER 167 OF THE TOWN CODE OF THE 
TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW, ENTITLED, “ZONING” TO REGULATE CANNABIS 
USES IN THE UNINCORPORATED TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW. 
 
TOWN CLERK READ PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

PRESENTATION BY TOWN ATTORNEY WILLIAM M. STEIN 

BOARD MEMBERS 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

CLOSE HEARING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7. RESOLUTION TO ADOPT LAW NO. 13 – 2023 CANNABIS LAW 
 

WHEREAS, IN LIGHT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK LEGALIZING 
CERTAIN CANNABIS USES, INCLUDING CANNABIS RETAIL DISPENSARIES AND 
ON-SITE CANNABIS CONSUMPTION ESTABLISHMENTS, THE TOWN OF 
HAVERSTRAW TOWN BOARD (“TOWN BOARD”) IS CONSIDERING LOCAL LAW 
NO. 13 OF 2023 TO PUT REASONABLE TIME, PLACE AND MANNER ZONING 
RESTRICTIONS ON THESE USES FOR THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELL-BEING 
OF THE TOWN’S CONSTITUENTS; AND 

 
WHEREAS, THE TOWN BOARD IS THE ONLY INVOLVED AGENCY 

PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT 
(“SEQRA”) AND IS, THEREFORE, LEAD AGENCY; AND 

WHEREAS, THE PROPOSED ACTION IS A TYPE I ACTION UNDER SEQRA 
PURSUANT TO 6 NYCRR 617.4(B)(2); AND 

 
WHEREAS, THE TOWN HAS PREPARED A FULL ENVIRONMENTAL 

ASSESSMENT FORM, PART 1; AND 
 
WHEREAS, THE LOCAL LAW WAS REFERRED TO THE ROCKLAND 

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING (“COUNTY PLANNING”) IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GML § 239-M, IN RESPONSE TO WHICH COUNTY 
PLANNING SENT THE TOWN A LETTER DATED NOVEMBER 29, 2023 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL WITHOUT MODIFICATIONS AND ADVISING 
THAT “[S]INCE THE PROPOSED LOCAL LAW WILL HAVE NO ADVERSE 
IMPACTS ON ANY COUNTY-WIDE INTERESTS, THIS MATTER IS REMANDED 
FOR LOCAL DETERMINATION;” AND 

 
WHEREAS, THE TOWN BOARD HELD A DULY-NOTICED PUBLIC 

HEARING ON THIS LOCAL LAW ON DECEMBER 12, 2023, AND MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC HAVING THE OPPORTUNITY TO ATTEND AND BE HEARD, THE 
PUBLIC HEARING WAS CLOSED ON DECEMBER 12, 2023; AND 

 
WHEREAS, THIS LOCAL LAW HAS BEEN ON THE DESKS OF THE TOWN 

BOARD FOR AT LEAST SEVEN CALENDAR DAYS, EXCLUSIVE OF SUNDAY; AND 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, THE TOWN BOARD HEREBY ADOPTS THE ATTACHED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION DETERMINING THE LOCAL LAW DOES NOT HAVE 
THE POTENTIAL TO CREATE ANY SIGNIFICANT ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACTS AND THUS ENDING THE SEQRA REVIEW PROCESS AS THE STATE 
ALREADY LEGALIZED THESE USES AND THE LOCAL LAW WILL REGULATE 
THOSE USES TO ENSURE THEY ARE CONDUCTED IN LOCATIONS AND IN 
MANNERS THAT ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE TOWN’S CURRENT 
OPERATIONS AND PROTECT THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE OF THE 
PUBLIC; AND 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THE TOWN BOARD HEREBY ADOPTS 

LOCAL LAW NO. 13 OF 2023 TO AMEND THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW ZONING 
CODE TO REGULATE CANNABIS USES IN THE TOWN; AND 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THE TOWN CLERK IS HEREBY DIRECTED 
TO FILE AND DISTRIBUTE THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH 6 NYCRR 617.12(B); PUBLISH THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION IN THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL NOTICE BULLETIN IN ACCORDANCE WITH 6 NYCRR 
617.12(C); AND FURTHER DISTRIBUTE, FILE AND/OR PUBLISH THE NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION AND ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS AS REQUIRED BY LAW; AND 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THE TOWN CLERK IS DIRECTED TO ENTER 
SAID LOCAL LAW IN THE MINUTES OF THIS MEETING INTO THE LOCAL LAW 
BOOK FOR THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW; TO PUBLISH SAID MINUTES IN A 
NEWSPAPER PUBLISHED IN THE TOWN, IF ANY, OR IN SUCH NEWSPAPER 



PUBLISHED IN THE COUNTY IN WHICH SUCH TOWN MAY BE LOCATED 
HAVING A CIRCULATION IN SUCH TOWN, AND AFFIDAVITS OF SAID 
PUBLICATION SHALL BE FILED WITH THE TOWN CLERK; AND TO FILE A 
COPY OF SAID LOCAL LAW WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW YORK. 

 
8. SET DATE FOR 2024 REORGANIZATION MEETING 

RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE THE TOWN CLERK TO PUBLISH A LEGAL NOTICE 
TO SET A DATE FOR ITS ANNUAL REORGANIZATION MEETING ON THURSDAY, 
JANUARY 4, 2024 AT 7:00 P.M. IN THE MEETING ROOM OF THE TOWN HALL, 
ONE ROSMAN ROAD, GARNERVILLE, NEW YORK. 
 
9. CLOSE CAPITAL PROJECT – HAVERSTRAW RECREATION COMPLEX 

PHASE I 
 
 RESOLVED, THAT BASED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF SUBURBAN 
ENGINEERS TOWN CONSULTING ENGINEERS, THE TOWN BOARD OF THE 
TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW DOES HEREBY CLOSE THE HAVERSTRAW 
RECREATION COMPLEX PHASE I PROJECT, AND BE IT FURTHER 

 
RESOLVED, THAT THIS CAPITAL PROJECT WAS BUDGETED IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $12,850,000.00 OF WHICH $12,805,302.17 WAS EXPENDED TO 
COMPLETE THE ABOVE MENTIONED PROJECT THEREFORE THE REMAINING 
BALANCE OF $44,697.83 WILL BE TRANSFERRED BACK TO GENERAL FUND AS 
AN INTERFUND TRANSFER. 
 
10. ACCEPTANCE OF LETTER OF RETIREMENT – FRANK PENA 

 RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW, 
DOES HEREBY ACCEPT THE LETTER OF RETIREMENT FOR 
GROUNDSWORKER, TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW PARKS DEPARTMENT FRANK 
PENA, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 23, 2024. 
 
11. BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDING IN NOVEMBER 30, 2023 

RESOLVED, THAT THE SUPERVISOR IS AUTHORIZED TO MAKE BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENTS FROM THE GENERAL FUND (A) IN THE AMOUNT OF $485,000.00 
PURSUANT TO THE REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE FOR THE TOWN 
OF HAVERSTRAW FOR THE PERIOD ENDING IN NOVEMBER 30, 2023 (SEE 
ATTACHED BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS). 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12. ADOPTION OF SEWER ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE YEAR 2023 AND THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF SEWER RENT RATES FOR SEWER DISTRICT NO. 1 
FOR THE YEAR 2024. 

 
  RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW, 

DOES HEREBY ADOPT THE SEWER ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE YEAR 2023 
AND ACCEPTS THE ESTABLISHMENT OF SEWER RENT RATES FOR SEWER 
DISTRICT NO. 1, TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW FOR THE YEAR 2024. 

 
13. RESOLUTION – ZONING PETITION BY BNE ACQUISITIONS, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, ON OR ABOUT NOVEMBER 30, 2023 BNE ACQUISITIONS, LLC 
(“APPLICANT”) SUBMITTED A ZONING PETITION TO THE TOWN BOARD 
REQUESTING A ZONE CHANGE FOR A 22.67-ACRE PORTION OF THE 
PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE FORMER LETCHWORTH VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT 
CENTER (TAX LOT NUMBER 19.16-1-14) (THE “PROPERTY”) FROM THE R-120 
ZONING DISTRICT TO THE LA-17 ZONING DISTRICT; AND 

 
WHEREAS, THE TOWN CURRENTLY OWNS THE PROPERTY AND 

CONSENTS TO THE APPLICANT MAKING THIS APPLICATION; AND 
 WHEREAS, IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE REQUESTED ZONE CHANGE, 
THE APPLICANT IS PROPOSING TO DEVELOP THE PROPERTY WITH 
APPROXIMATELY 300 RESIDENTIAL UNITS; AND 
 

WHEREAS, PURSUANT TO TOWN ZONING CODE § 167-108(B), ANY 
ACTION BY THE TOWN BOARD TO MODIFY THE ZONING CODE, INCLUDING 
MODIFYING THE ZONING MAP, MUST FIRST BE REFERRED TO THE PLANNING 
BOARD FOR ITS REVIEW AND REPORT; AND 

 
WHEREAS, THIS PROJECT IS A TYPE I ACTION UNDER 6 NYCRR 

617.4(B)(5)(III) THAT WILL REQUIRE A COORDINATED ENVIRONMENTAL 
REVIEW PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT 
(“SEQRA”); AND 

 
WHEREAS, THE APPLICANT HAS NOT YET MADE AN APPLICATION TO 

THE PLANNING BOARD FOR SUBDIVISION AND SITE PLAN OR SUBMITTED A 
SEQRA FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM, PART 1; AND NOW 
THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, THE TOWN BOARD HEREBY REFERS THE ZONING 

PETITION BY BNE ACQUISITIONS, LLC TO THE PLANNING BOARD FOR ITS 
REVIEW AND REPORT; AND 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THE PLANNING BOARD IS NOT REQUIRED 

TO COMMENCE ITS REVIEW OF THE ZONING PETITION UNTIL THE 
APPLICANT HAS SUBMITTED ALL DOCUMENTS DEEMED NECESSARY TO THE 
PLANNING BOARD TO COMMENCE ITS OWN REVIEW; AND 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THE TOWN BOARD CONSENTS TO THE PLANNING 
BOARD SERVING AS LEAD AGENCY FOR A COORDINATED REVIEW PURSUANT 
TO SEQRA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14. AUTHORIZATION TO SURPLUS VOTING MACHINES 
 
 RESOLVED, THAT BASED UPON THE RECOMMENDATION OF JOHN 
FRIZALONE, GROUNDSKEEPER, THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF 
HAVERSTRAW DOES HEREBY DECLARE THE FOLLOWING VOTING MACHINES 
NUMBERS AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZES THE SALE OF SAID MACHINES: 

VOTING MACHINE INVENTORY 
VOTING 

MACHINE # 
TOWN 

HAVETRAW # 
TOWN STONY 

POINT # 
ROCKLAND 
COUNTY # 

  171376 289   AVM177 
  125472 300   AVM054 
  163934 288   AVM139 
  149994 298   AVM112 
  174325 290   AVM131 
  174357 292   AVM109 
  167804 293   AVM125 
  167808 297   AVM108 
  150000 302   AVM126 
  174348 281   AVM113 
  146589 275   AVM114 
  200254 283   AVM135 
  149999 271   AVM241 
  169572 291   AVM116 
  129000 276   AVM111 
  166182 287   AVM119 
  200253 285   AVM138 
  172605 N/A   AVM262 
  150836   70 AVM337 
  150835   N/A AVM342 
  138738   77 AVM345 
   

15. ADVERTISE FOR BID NO. 12- 2023 – PHILIP J. ROTELLA GOLF COURSE 18-
HOLE AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM – TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
 

 RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN CLERK BE AND SHE HEREBY IS 
AUTHORIZED TO PUBLISH A NOTICE TO BIDDERS THAT SEALED PROPOSALS 
WILL BE RECEIVED AT HER OFFICE AT ONE ROSMAN ROAD, GARNERVILLE, 
NEW YORK, UP TO AND INCLUDING 10:00 A.M. ON JANUARY 11, 2024, FOR THE 
RECEIPT OF BIDS FOR PHILIP J. ROTELLA GOLF COURSE 18-HOLE 
AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
SPECIFICATIONS. 
 
16. APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH CIVIL SERVICE 

EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 1000 AFSCME, AFL-CIO, TOWN OF 
HAVERSTRAW POLICE DISPATCHERS UNIT, ROCKLAND COUNTY 
LOCAL 844 

 
RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE SUPERVISOR TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT WITH CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 1000 
AFSCME, AFL-CIO, TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW POLICE DISPATCHERS UNIT, 
ROCKLAND COUNTY LOCAL 844, BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2024. 

 
 
 
 
 



17. AUTHORIZATION TO SET TERMS & CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 
FOR POLICE CHIEF – JANUARY 1, 2023 – DECEMBER 31, 2024 
 

 RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE SUPERVISOR TO SIGN THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR POLICE CHIEF PETER MURPHY FROM 
JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2024 AS SET FORTH IN THE 
WRITTEN TERMS AND CONDITIONS DATED DECEMBER 12, 2023. 
 

18. AUTHORIZATION TO SET TERMS & CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 
FOR POLICE CAPTAIN – JANUARY 1, 2023 – DECEMBER 31, 2024 
 

 RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE SUPERVISOR TO SIGN THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR POLICE CAPTAIN JOHN J. GOULD JR. 
FROM JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2024 AS SET FORTH IN THE 
WRITTEN TERMS AND CONDITIONS DATED DECEMBER 12, 2023. 
 
19. AUTHORIZATION TO SET TERMS & CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

FOR POLICE LIEUTENANTS – JANUARY 1, 2023 – DECEMBER 31, 2024 
 

 RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE SUPERVISOR TO SIGN THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR POLICE LIEUTENANT IAN KAYE, 
LIEUTENANT MANFREDO FIGUEROA AND LIEUTENANT JAMES W. HANSEN 
FROM JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2024 AS SET FORTH IN THE 
WRITTEN TERMS AND CONDITIONS DATED DECEMBER 12, 2023. 
 

20. AWARD OF RFQ NO. 31-2023 – PURCHASE OF ONE (1) HP Z2 SMALL FORM 
FACTOR G9 WORKSTATION WOLF PRO SERVER AND TWO (2) CRUCIAL 
27B PCIE SSD– TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 

 

 RESOLVED, THAT THREE (3) REQUESTS FOR QUOTES WERE SUBMITTED 
TO DIRECTOR OF FINANCE MICHAEL GAMBOLI FOR THE PURCHASE OF ONE 
(1) HP Z2 SMALL FORM FACTOR G9 WORKSTATION WOLF PRO SERVER AND 
TWO (2) CRUCIAL 2TB PCIE SSD FOR THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT AND BE IT FURTHER 
 
 RESOLVED, THAT THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF HAVERSTRAW 
DOES HEREBY AWARD THE RFQ TO THOMAS MARSHALL DBA NORTH 
MOUNTAIN DIGITAL VIA PC WAREHOUSE OF EAST HANOVER, NEW JERSEY 
AT A TOTAL COST OF 3,198.00, THE LOWEST QUOTE. 
 

 












